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To the Shareholders’ of Burgan Bank A.S.
A) Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Burgan Bank A.S. (“the Bank”)
and its consolidated financial subsidiaries (together will be referred as to “the Group”)
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023 and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity,
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis For Qualified
Opinion section of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Burgan Bank
AS. and its consolidated financial subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with the “Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA”)
Accounting and Reporting Legislation” which includes the “Regulation on Accounting
Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents” published in the Official Gazette
No. 26333 dated 1 November 2006, and other regulations on accounting records of banks
published by Banking Regulation and Supervision Board, circulars and interpretations
published by BRSA and requirements of Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) for
the matters not regulated by the aforementioned legislations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As stated in Note 2.h.2.ii of Section Five, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2023 include a general provision of total of TL 1,872,098
thousands, of which TL 1,177,787 thousands was recognized as expense in the current
period and TL 694,311 thousands had been recognized as expense in prior periods which
does not meet the requirements of BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation. This
general provision is provided by the Group management for the possible effects of the
negative circumstances which may arise in economy or market conditions.



We conducted our audit in accordance with the “Regulation on Independent Audit of the Banks”
(“BRSA Auditing Regulation”) published in the Official Gazette No.29314 dated 2 April 2015 by BRSA
and Standards on Auditing which is a component of the Turkish Auditing Standards published by the
Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”) (“Standards on Auditing issued
by POA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
declare that we are independent of the Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Auditors issued
by POA (Including Independence Standards) (“POA’s Code of Ethics”) and the ethical requirements in
the regulations issued by POA that are relevant to audit of consolidated financial statements, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the POA’s Code of Ethics and
regulations. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section we have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Impairment of loans, leasing receivables and factoring receivables (“loans”) measured at amortised
cost.

The details of accounting policies and significant estimate and assumptions for impairment of loans
measured at amortised cost are presented in Section Ill, No: VIII of the consolidated financial
statements.

Key audit matter

As of 31 December 2023, loans measured at
amortised cost comprise 59% of the Bank’s total
assets.

The Bank recognizes its loans in accordance with
the Regulation on the Procedures and Principles
for Classification of Loans by Banks and
Provisions to be set aside (the “Regulation”)
published on the Official Gazette No. 29750
dated 22 June 2016 and TFRS 9 Financial
Instruments standard (“Standard”).

The Bank applies the “expected credit loss
model” in determining the impairment of
financial assets in accordance with the
Regulation and Standard. The model which
contains significant assumptions and estimates
is reviewed by the Bank’s management annually.

The significant assumptions and estimates used
in the model by Bank’s management are as
follows:

— significant increase in credit risk;

How the matter is addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures applied in this area are as
follows:

e We tested the design, implemantation and
operating effectiveness of the controls on
lending, collateralization, collection,
follow-up, classification and impairment
procedures are tested with the
involvement of information risk
management specialists.

e We evaluated the model and methodology
and the evaluation of the calculations were
carried out with the control testing and
detailed analysis by the involvement of
specialist.

e We evaluated the model and methodology
and the evaluation of the calculations were
carried out with the control testing and
detailed analysis by the involvement of
specialist.




— incorporating the forward-looking
macroeconomic information in calculation of
credit risk; and

— design and implementation of expected
credit loss model.

The determination of the impairment of loans
measured at amortised cost depends on the (i)
credit default status, (ii) the model based on the
change in the credit risk at the first recognition
date and (iii) the classification of the loans
measured at amortised cost according to the
model. Establishing an accurate classification is a
significant process in terms of impairment
calculation as the calculation of expected credit
loss varies to the staging of the financial assets.

The Bank calculates expected credit losses on
both an individual and a collective basis.
Individual provisions consider the estimated
future performance of the business and the fair
value of the collateral provided for credit
transactions.

The collective basis expected credit loss
calculation is based on complex processes which
are modelled by using current and past data sets
and expectations. The completeness and
accuracy of data sets in the model are also
considered and the forward-looking
expectations are reflected by macroeconomic
models.

Impairment on loans measured at amortised
cost is determined as a key audit matter, due to
the significance of the management estimates,
assumptions, the level of judgements and its
complex structure.

We performed loan reviews for selected
loan samples which include a detailed
examination of loan files and related
information and testing their classification.
In this context, the current status of the
loan customer has been evaluated on
prospective information and
macroeconomic variables.

We tested population for selected sample
by evaluating the assumptions and
estimates used in the expected credit loss
calculations for loans subject to individual
assessment.

We tested the accuracy and completeness
of the data in the calculation models for the
loans which are assessed on collective
basis. The expected credit loss calculation
was tested through recalculation. The
models used for the calculation of the risk
parameters were examined and the risk
parameters were recalculated.

We assessed the macroeconomic models
that are used to reflect forward looking
expectations and tested the effect of the
risk parameters by recalculation method.
We evaluated the qualitative and
guantitative assessments, which are used
in determining the significant increase in
credit risk.

We evaluated the sufficiency and adequacy
of the consolidated financial statements’
disclosures related to impairment
provisions.




Other matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022
was audited by another auditor who expressed a qualified opinion due to the general reserve
provisions provided by the Group management on 15 February 2023.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the “BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation”, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Responsibilities of auditors in an audit are as follows:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with BRSA Auditing Regulation and
Standards on Auditing issued by POA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with BRSA Auditing Regulation and Standards on Auditing issued by
POA, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.



e |f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

B) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) Pursuant to the fourth paragraph of Article 402 of the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No. 6102;
no significant matter has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Bank’s
bookkeeping activities for the period 1 January - 31 December 2023 are not in compliance with TCC
and provisions of the Bank’s articles of association in relation to financial reporting.

2) Pursuant to the fourth paragraph of Article 402 of the TCC; the Board of Directors provided us the
necessary explanations and required documents except for the annual report in connection with
the audit.

KPMG Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Misavirlik Anonim Sirketi

Ebru Kogak, SMMM
Partner

13 February 2024
istanbul, Turkey
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THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REPORT OF
BURGAN BANK A.S. AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023

Address of the Bank’s Head Office : Maslak Mabhallesi, Eski Biiyiikdere Caddesi, No:13
34485 Saryer / Istanbul

Telephone and Fax Numbers of Bank : Telephone 202123713737
Fax 102123714242

Bank’s Website : www.burgan.com.tr

Contact E-mail : bilgi@burgan.com.tr

The consolidated financial audit report includes the following sections in accordance with the Communiqué on Financial
Statements and Related Explanations and Notes that will be Publicly Announced as sanctioned by the Banking Regulation and
Supervision Agency.

e  Section One GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE GROUP

e  Section Two CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE GROUP

e  Section Three EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE RELEVANT PERIOD

e  Section Four INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF
THE GROUP

e  Section Five EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES RELATED TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

e  Section Six OTHER EXPLANATIONS

e  Section Seven EXPLANATIONS ON INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

Investments in associates, subsidiaries and joint ventures whose financial statements have been consolidated in this reporting
package are as follows:

Subsidiaries Associates Joint Ventures
1. Burgan Finansal Kiralama A.S. - -
2. Burgan Yatirim Menkul Degerler A.S. - -

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes to these financial statements which are expressed, unless
otherwise stated, in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”), have been prepared and presented based on the accounting books of the
Bank in accordance with the Regulation on Accounting Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents, Turkish
Accounting Standards, Turkish Financial Reporting Standards, and related appendices and interpretations of these, and have
been audited.

13 February 2024

Emin Hakan EMINSOY Ali Murat DINC Zeynep BOZKURT Bahadir AKSU
Chairman of the Board of Member of the Board of  Deputy Chief Executive Head of Accounting,
Directors Directors and Officer, Vice General Tax, and Reporting Unit
General Manager Manager of Financial
Affairs
Hasan KILIC Khaled F.A.O. ALZOUMAN Moustapha CHAMI

Head of the Audit Committee Member of the Audit Committee Member of the Audit Committee

Contact information of the personnel in charge of the addressing of questions about this financial report:

Name-Surname / Title ~ : Bahadir AKSU / Head of Department
Telephone Number :0212371 3488
Fax Number 102123714248


http://www.burgan.com.tr/
mailto:bilgi@burgan.com.tr
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BURGAN BANK A.S.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION ONE

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE GROUP

PARENT BANK’S FOUNDATION DATE, START-UP STATUTE, HISTORY ABOUT THE
CHANGES IN THIS MENTIONED STATUTE:

Tekfen Yatirim ve Finansman Bankasi A.S. was established as an “investment bank™ with the permission
of the Council of Ministers No. 88/13253 on 26 August 1988 and authorised to conduct finance
investment and foreign trade activities. Banking operations commenced on 7 August 1989.

Bank Ekspres A.S. (“Bank Ekspres”) was established with the permission of the Council of Ministers in
decision No. 91/2316 on 22 September 1991; “The Decree of Establishment Permission” was published
in the Official Gazette numbered 21017 and dated 10 October 1991. The Articles of Association was
published in the Trade Registry Gazette numbered 2969 and dated 18 February 1992. The Turkish
Savings Deposit and Insurance Fund (“SDIF”) took over the management of Bank Ekspres A.S. due to
the poor fiscal structure of the bank on 23 October 1998.

According to the Share Transfer Agreement signed between the SDIF and Tekfen Holding A.S. on
30 June 2001, 2,983,800,000 shares with a nominal value of Krl each and which amount to 99.46% of
the capital of Bank Ekspres A.S. under the control of the SDIF in accordance with Banking Law were
transferred to Tekfen Holding A.S.. Based on this agreement, the acquisition of Tekfen Yatirim ve
Finansman Bankas1 A.S., where Tekfen Holding A.S. owns 57.69% of the Bank, by Bank Ekspres A.S.
was permitted by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency’s (“BRSA”) decision numbered 489
dated 18 October 2001. The share transfers were realised on 26 October 2001 and the Bank’s name was
changed to Tekfenbank Anonim Sirketi, which had two main shareholders: Tekfen Holding A.S. with
57.30% and TST International S.A. with 40.62%.

EFG Eurobank Ergasias S.A. (“Eurobank EFG”) and Tekfen Holding A.S. (“Tekfen Group”) signed an
agreement as of 8 May 2006, that anticipated Eurobank EFG to purchase Tekfen Group’s 70% share in
Tekfenbank A.S. and Tekfen Finansal Kiralama A.S. which is fully owned by Tekfenbank; where Tekfen
Group retained its strategic partnership by keeping all remaining shares. On 23 February 2007, the sale
of Tekfenbank A.S. to Eurobank EFG Holding (Luxembourg) S.A. (“Eurobank EFG Holding”) was
approved by the BRSA and the sale was completed after the share transfer on 16 March 2007.

Under the agreement regarding the sale of Eurobank Ergasias S.A.’s Turkey operations to Burgan Bank
K.P.S.C. (formerly Burgan Bank S.A.K), 70% of the bank shares belonging to Eurobank EFG Holding
(Luxemburg) S.A. and 29.26% of the shares belonging to Tekfen Holding A.S. are bought by Burgan
Bank K.P.S.C. in 7 December 2012 in accordance with the Banking Regulation and Supervision
Agency’s authorization, and then 99.26% of the bank shares are turned over to Burgan Bank K.P.S.C. in
21 December 2012.

At the Extraordinary Board of Directors meeting on 23 January 2013, the title of the Bank has been
decided to change from Eurobank Tekfen A.S. to Burgan Bank A.S. (“the Bank”), and has been registered
to the Turkish Trade Registry as of 25 January 2013.

Burgan Bank K.P.S.C., which is the main shareholder with a share ratio of 99.41%, has completed the
transfer transaction of its share corresponding to 52% of the Bank's capital to Al Rawabi United Holding
K.S.C.C., obtaining necessary approvals from the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency. Kuwait
Projects Company K.S.C.P., the actual main shareholder of Burgan Bank K.P.S.C., also owns 99.99% of
the shares of Al Rawabi United Holding Company K.S.C.C. Therefore, there has been no change in the
ultimate ownership of Burgan Bank A.S., as Kuwait Projects Company K.S.C.P., the actual main
shareholder of Burgan Bank K.P.S.C., holds 99.99% of the shares of Al Rawabi United Holding
Company K.S.C.C.
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BURGAN BANK A.S.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE GROUP (Continued):

I1. EXPLANATION ABOUT THE PARENT BANK’S CAPITAL STRUCTURE, SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE PARENT BANK WHO ARE IN CHARGE OF THE MANAGEMENT AND/OR
AUDITING OF THE PARENT BANK DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, CHANGES IN THESE
MATTERS (IF ANY) AND THE GROUP THE PARENT BANK BELONGS TO:

The Bank’s registered capital ceiling is 6 billion full TL.
The Bank’s capital amounting to full TL 3,050,000,000 has been registered.

By decision numbered 2023/22 dated 21 June 2023, the Bank's Board of Directors obtained the necessary
permission from the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency for the completion of procedures
related to increasing our Bank's capital from TL 2,655,500,000 to TL 3,050,000,000, while staying within
the registered capital ceiling of TL 6,000,000,000. This increase, amounting to TL 394,500,000, is entirely
covered by internal sources. Accordingly, the entire paid-in capital, funded from internal sources, was
registered and announced in the Trade Registry Gazette numbered 10978 dated 13 December 2023.

The transfer transaction of Burgan Bank K.P.S.C.'s share, representing 52% of the Bank's capital, to Al
Rawabi United Holding K.S.C.C., has been completed with the necessary approvals obtained from the
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency. Kuwait Projects Company K.S.C.P., the actual main
shareholder of Burgan Bank K.P.S.C., also owns 99.99% of the shares of Al Rawabi United Holding
Company K.S.C.C. Therefore, as Kuwait Projects Company K.S.C.P., the actual main shareholder of
Burgan Bank K.P.S.C., holds 99.99% of the shares of Al Rawabi United Holding Company K.S.C.C.,
there has been no change in the ultimate ownership of Burgan Bank A.S.

Founded in 1977, Burgan Bank K.P.S.C., as an affiliate of KIPCO Group (Kuwait Projects Company),
one of the largest holding groups of the MENA region (Middle East and North Africa), is among the
significant banking groups in the region. Besides Kuwait, Burgan Bank Group also operates as a main
shareholder with its affiliate banks in Algeria (Gulf Bank Algeria), Iraq (Bank of Baghdad), and Tunisia
(Tunis International Bank).
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BURGAN BANK A.S.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023
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GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK (Continued):

III. EXPLANATION ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE,
PRESIDENT AND EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENTS, CHANGES IN THESE MATTERS (IF ANY)
AND SHARES OF THE BANK THEY POSSESS:

Title Name Responsibility Education

Chairman of the Board of

Directors: Emin Hakan Eminsoy Chairman of the Board of Directors Undergraduate

Board of Directors

Members: Abdelkarim A. S. Kabariti Deputy Chairman Undergraduate
Mehmet Alev Gogmez Member Graduate
Khaled F.A.O. Alzouman Member Undergraduate
Hasan Kilig Member Undergraduate
Fadhil M. GH. A. Abdullah Member Undergraduate
Mohammad M. A. H. S. Almael Member Graduate
Moustapha Chami Member Graduate
Ali Murat Ding Member and General Manager Graduate

General Manager: Ali Murat Ding Member and General Manager Graduate

Deputy General Managers: Suat Kerem Soziigiizel Commercial & Corporate Banking Graduate
Zeynep Bozkurt Financial Affairs Graduate

Vice General Managers: Esra Aydin Operations & Management Services Graduate
Cihan Vural Internal Systems Undergraduate
Rasim Levent Ergin Human Resources Graduate
Suat Kerem Soziigiizel Commercial & Corporate Banking Graduate
Banu Ertiirk Loans Monitoring and Legal Follow-Up  Undergraduate
Dargo Akkaranfil Information Technologies Graduate
Zeynep Bozkurt Financial Affairs Graduate
Aysen Asli Koger Savings Management Undergraduate
Yener Yazlali Credits Graduate
Halil Ozcan Digital Banking Undergraduate
Tuba Onay Ergelen Risk Management Undergraduate

Treasury, Capital Markets and Financial

Erdal Arda Tiirerer Institutions Graduate

Audit Committee: Hasan Kilig Committee President Undergraduate
Khaled F.A.O. Alzouman Member Undergraduate
Moustapha Chami Member Graduate

There is no share of the above individuals in the Bank.
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BURGAN BANK A.S.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK (Continued):

Iv.

VI

VII.

EXPLANATION ON SHAREHOLDERS HAVING CONTROL SHARES IN THE PARENT
BANK:

Name/Commercial title Share Amounts ;: Share percentage : Paid-in Capital Unpaid portion
Al Rawabi United Holding K.S.C.C. 1,586,000 52.00% 52.00% -
Burgan Bank K.P.S.C. 1,446,061 47.41% 47.41% -

Based on the Principal Agreement, the Bank has 1 million founder's shares. According to the Principal
Agreement, after allocating 5% to legal reserves and distributing 5% of the paid in capital, 10% of
distributable amount is distributed to the owners of the founder's shares.

INFORMATION ON THE PARENT BANK'’S SERVICE TYPE AND FIELD OF OPERATIONS:

As of 31 December 2023, the Parent Bank, whose headquarter located in Istanbul, has 29 branches
operating in Turkey (31 December 2022: 32). The Parent Bank’s core business activities include corporate
and commercial banking, retail banking and banking services in treasury fields. As of 31 December 2023,
the Group has 1,256 (31 December 2022: 1,138) employees.

DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE COMMUNIQUE ON PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BANKS AND TURKISH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND
SHORT EXPLANATION ABOUT THE ENTITIES SUBJECT TO FULL CONSOLIDATION OR
PROPORTIONAL CONSOLIDATION AND ENTITIES WHICH ARE DEDUCTED FROM
EQUITY OR ENTITIES WHICH ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THESE THREE METHODS

None.

CURRENT OR LIKELY ACTUAL OR LEGAL BARRIERS TO IMMEDIATE TRANSFER OF
EQUITY OR REPAYMENT OF DEBTS BETWEEN THE PARENT BANK AND ITS
SUBSIDIARIES:

None.
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(CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
IN TURKISH)

BURGAN BANK A.S.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION) AS OF

31 DECEMBER 2023 AND 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

L BALANCE SHEET Note Audited Audited
(Section 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

ASSETS Five) TL FC Total TL FC Total
L FINANCIAL ASSETS (Net) 11,054,781¢ 10,020,871: 21,075,652 6,574,865; 8,627,401 15,202,266
1.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,012,634 7,412,819 13,425,453 3,739,061; 6,741,529; 10,480,590
1.1.1  Cash and Balances at Central Bank I-a 4,427,484 6,188,372: 10,615,856 1,219,549} 5,629,209 6,848,758
1.1.2  Banks I-c 1,522,980 1,224,447¢ 2,747,427 640,327; 1,112,320i 1,752,647
1.1.3  Receivables from Money Markets 62,235 - 62,235| 1,879,256 - 1,879,256
1.1.4 Expected Credit Losses (-) 65 - 65 71 - 71
1.2 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss I-b 751,483 64,784 816,267 478,779 124,703 603,482
1.2.1 Public Debt Securities 1,566 64,784 66,350 382,718 18,311 401,029
1.2.2  Equity Instruments - - - - - -
1.2.3  Other Financial Assets 749,917 - 749,917 96,061 106,392 202,453
1.3 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income I-d 2,020,960 1,032,708; 3,053,668 1,341,741 284,890; 1,626,631
1.3.1 Public Debt Securities 2,013,286 988,763 3,002,049 1,334,067 262,162 1,596,229
1.3.2  Equity Instruments 7,674 43,945 51,619 7,674 22,728 30,402
1.3.3  Other Financial Assets - - - - - -
1.4  Derivative Financial Assets I-1 2,269,704 1,510,560; 3,780,264| 1,015,284; 1,476,279; 2,491,563
1.4.1 Derivative Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 891,701 209,997 1,101,698 110,344 143,897 254,241
1.4.2  Derivative Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive

Income 1,378,003 1,300,563; 2,678,566 904,940 1,332,382i 2,237,322
II.  FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT AMORTIZED COST (Net) 33,869,110 27,221,152} 61,090,262 | 24,713,570; 20,192,572 44,906,142
2.1  Loans I-e-f |[26,101,162i 20,516,689 46,617,851| 20,580,816 16,514,042; 37,094,858
2.2 Receivables from Leasing Transactions I-k 1,908,151 4,183,135: 6,091,286 1,544,119; 3,217,772 4,761,891
2.3 Factoring Receivables 12,889 - 12,889 - - -
2.4 Other Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost I-g 6,432,367 3,232,867; 9,665,234 3,679,178 1,701,528; 5,380,706
2.4.1 Public Debt Securities 6,432,367 3,232,867 9,665,234 3,679,178 1,701,528 5,380,706,
2.4.2 Other Financial Assets - - - - - -
2.5  Expected Credit Losses (-) I-e-f 585,459 711,539 1,296,998 1,090,543; 1,240,770; 2,331,313
III. NON-CURRENTS ASSETS OR DISPOSAL GROUPS HELD FOR SALE

AND FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Net) I-r 1,805,136 -i 1,805,136| 855,289 - 855,289
3.1 Held for Sale 1,805,136 -i 1,805,136 855,289 - 855,289
3.2 Held from Discontinued Operations - - - - - -

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES, SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT
IV. VENTURES - - - - - -
4.1 Investments in Associates (Net) I-h - - - - - -
4.1.1 Associates Accounted by Using Equity Method - - - - - -
4.1.2  Non-consolidated Associates - - - - - -
4.2 Investments in Subsidiaries (Net) I-i - - - - - -
4.2.1 Non-Consolidated Financial Subsidiaries - - - - - -
4.2.2  Non-Consolidated Non-Financial Subsidiaries - - - - - -
4.3 Jointly Controlled Partnerships (Joint Ventures) (Net) I-j - - - - - -
4.3.1 Jointly Controlled Partnerships Accounted by Using Equity Method - - - - - -
4.3.2  Non-Consolidated Jointly Controlled Partnerships - - - - - -
V. TANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) I-m 3,738,042 -i 3,738,042| 1,583,273 - 1,583,273
VI. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) I-n 174,690 - 174,690 86,599 - 86,599
6.1 Goodwill - - - - - -
6.2  Other 174,690 - 174,690 86,599 - 86,599
VII. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Net) I-o - - - - - -
VIII. CURRENT TAX ASSETS 145,743 - 145,743 29,604 - 29,604
IX. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS I-p - - .| 164,843 S 164,843
X. OTHER ASSETS (Net) I-s 1,312,540 420,497; 1,733,037 804,331 115,643 919,974

TOTAL ASSETS 52,100,042; 37,662,520 89,762,562 | 34,812,374 28,935,616; 63,747,990

The accompanying explanations and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
IN TURKISH)

BURGAN BANK A.S.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION) AS OF
31 DECEMBER 2023 AND 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

L BALANCE SHEET Audited Audited
Note 31/12/2023 31/12/2022
(Section

LIABILITIES Five) TL FC Total TL FC Total
L DEPOSITS II-a 25,463,367 15,084,719 40,548,086 | 25,160,517 14,553,031} 39,713,548
II. LOANS RECEIVED II-¢ 36,193 20,630,079 20,666,272 819,207; 6,638,570; 7,457,777
III. MONEY MARKET FUNDS 2,323,271¢ 2,734,906: 5,058,177 1,055,388 600,907 1,656,295
IV. MARKETABLE SECURITIES (Net) 1I-d - - - - - -
4.1 Bills - - - - - -
4.2 Asset Backed Securities - - - - - -
4.3 Bonds - - - - - -
V. FUNDS - - - - - -
5.1 Borrower Funds - - - - - -
52 Other - - - - - -
VI FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR

LOSS 1I-b - - - - - -
VII. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 1I-g 1,239,787  201,991; 1,441,778 194,368 260,139 454,507
7.1 Derivative Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 769,337 127,609 896,946 60,080 239,710 299,790
72 Derivative Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive

Income 470,450 74,382 544,832 134,288 20,429 154,717
VIII. FACTORING PAYABLES - - - - - -
IX. LEASE PAYABLES (Net) 1I-f 105,557 - 105,557 83,046 - 83,046
X. PROVISIONS 1I-h 1,540,838 758,292 2,299,130 236,796 716,803 953,599
10.1  Provision for Restructuring - - - - - -
10.2  Reserves for Employee Benefits 365,801 - 365,801 209,824 - 209,824
10.3  Insurance Technical Reserves (Net) - - - - - -
10.4  Other Provisions 1,175,037 758,292¢ 1,933,329 26,972 716,803 743,775
XI. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES II-i 240,951 - 240,951 467,947 - 467,947
XII. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES II-i 842,049 - 842,049 159,992 - 159,992
XIII. LIABILITIES RELATED TO NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR

SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Net) 1I-j - - - - - -
13.1  Held for Sale - - - - - -
13.2  Related to Discontinued Operations - - - - - -
XIV. SUBORDINATED DEBT II-k -i 5,943,105 5,943,105 - 3,771,359 3,771,359
14.1  Loans - 5,943,105¢ 5,943,105 - 3,771,359 3,771,359,
14.2  Other Debt Instruments - - - - - -
XV. OTHER LIABILITIES II-e 1,480,510; 3,747,270: 5,227,780| 1,145,311 2,790,659; 3,935,970
XVI. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 1I-1 6,813,303 576,374; 7,389,677| 4,479,688 614,262 5,093,950
16.1  Paid-in Capital 3,050,000 -i 3,050,000 2,655,500 - 2,655,500
16.2  Capital Reserves (6,321) - (6,321) (6,321) - (6,321)
16.2.1 Equity Share Premiums - - - - - -
16.2.2 Share Cancellation Profits - - - - - -
16.2.3 Other Capital Reserves (6,321) - (6,321) (6,321) - (6,321)
16.3  Other Accumulated Comprehensive Income That Will Not Be Reclassified in

Profit Or Loss 45,044 - 45,044 12,624 - 12,624
16.4  Other Accumulated Comprehensive Income That Will Be Reclassified in Profit

or Loss (88,058) 576,374 488,316 171,051 614,262 785,313
16.5  Profit Reserves 1,252,334 -1 1,252,334 429,402 - 429,402
16.5.1 Legal Reserves 46,452 - 46,452 31,287 - 31,287
16.5.2 Statutory Reserves - - - - - -
16.5.3 Extraordinary Reserves 1,205,777 -1 1,205,777 398,010 - 398,010
16.5.4 Other profit Reserves 105 - 105 105 - 105
16.6  Profit or Loss 2,560,304 -1 2,560,304 1,217,432 - 1,217,432
16.6.1 Prior years' Profits or Losses - - - 15,708 - 15,708
16.6.2 Current Period Net Profit or Loss 2,560,304 - 2,560,304 1,201,724 - 1,201,724
16.7  Minority Shares - - - - - -

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 40,085,826 49,676,736 89,762,562 | 33,802,260: 29,945,730; 63,747,990

The accompanying explanations and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



(CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED

IN TURKISH)

BURGAN BANK A.S.

CONSOLIDATED OFF-BALANCE SHEETS COMMITMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023

AND 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

1L OFF-BALANCE SHEET Audited Audited
Note 31/12/2023 31/12/2022

(Section Five) TL) FC Total TL FC Total|
OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS (I+II+11I) 41,109,064 76,977,203 118,086,267 29,264,213 67,232,593 96,496,806
GUARANTEES AND WARRANTIES 1I-a-2-3 8,427,639; 6,232,947 14,660,586| 5,307,122 4,801,663 10,108,785
Letters of Guarantee 6,055,351 1,873,781 7,929,131 3,825,522 1,526,334 5,351,856
Guarantees Subject to State Tender Law 20,225 1,241; 21,46 11,621 789: 12,410
Guarantees Given for Foreign Trade Operations - - g - - -
Other Letters of Guarantee 6,035,125 1,872,541 7,907,665 3,813,901 1,525,545 5,339,446
Bank Acceptances 75,03 27,242 102,272 35,400; 13,267: 48,667,
Import Letter of Acceptance 75,03 27,242 102,272 35,400 13,267 48,667,
Other Bank Acceptances - E g - - -
Letters of Credit 166,509 3,627,573 3,794,082 40,000: 2,537,801 2,577,801
Documentary Letters of Credit 166,509 3,627,573 3,794,082 40,000 2,537,801 2,577,801
Other Letters of Credit - E E - - -
Prefinancing Given as Guarantee - E E - - -
Endorsements E E E - - -
Endorsements to the Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey - - g - - -
Other Endorsements - - E - - -
Securities Issue Purchase Guarantees - - E - - -
Factoring Guarantees - E g - - -
Other Guarantees 2,130,75 704,351 2,835,101 1,406,200; 724,261 2,130,461
Other Collaterals - E E - - -
COMMITMENTS II-a-1 612,296 575,825 1,188,121 515,729: 609,013 1,124,742
Irrevocable Commitments 612,29 575,825 1,188,121 515,729: 609,013 1,124,742
Asset Purchase and Sales Commitments 159,58 575,825 735,405 185,000 609,013 794,013
Deposit Purchase and Sales Commitments - E g - - -
Share Capital Commitments to Associates and Subsidiaries - E g - - -
Commitments for Loan Limits 237,903 E 237,903 172,366 - 172,366
Securities Issue Brokerage Commitments - E g - - -
Commitments for Reserve Deposit Requirements - E g - - -
Commitments for Cheques 141,403; B 141,403] 98,941 - 98,941
Tax and Fund Liabilities from Export Commitments - E E - - -
Commitments for Credit Card Limits - E E - - -
Promotion Commitments for Credit Cards and Banking Services - E E - - -
Receivables from Short Sale Commitments of Marketable Securities - E E - - -
Payables for Short Sale Commitments of Marketable Securities - - g - - -
Other Irrevocable Commitments 73,41 E 73,41 59,422 - 59,422
Revocable Commitments - - E - - -
Revocable Commitments for Loan Limits - - E - - -
Other Revocable Commitments - - E - - -
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32,069,129 70,168,431 102,237,56 23,441,362 61,821,917 85,263,279
Hedging Derivative Financial Instruments 10,097,042; 36,548,969; 46,646,011 3,207,042 27,510,897; 30,717,939
Transactions for Fair Value Hedge - E E - - -
Transactions for Cash Flow Hedge 10,097,042; 36,548,969; 46,646,011 3,207,042 27,510,897; 30,717,939
Transactions for Foreign Net Investment Hedge - E E - - -
Trading Derivative Financial Instruments 21,972,087: 33,619,462 55,591,54 20,234,320 34,311,020 54,545,340
Forward Foreign Currency Buy/Sell Transactions 874,284 903,651; 1,777,935 958,200: 1,101,744 2,059,944
Forward Foreign Currency Transactions-Buy 874,284 50,157; 924,441 958,200: 86,278 1,044,478
Forward Foreign Currency Transactions-Sell - 853,494 853,494 - 1,015,466 1,015,466
Swap Transactions Related to Foreign Currency and Interest Rates 19,528,023; 27,336,841 46,864,871 7,174,249 19,648,293 26,822,542
Foreign Currency Swap-Buy 3,457,501 18,691,32 22,148,827 2,080,567 10,058,064 12,138,631
Foreign Currency Swap-Sell 15,870,522; 6,529,81 22,400,332 4,593,682 7,532,051 12,125,733
Interest Rate Swap-Buy 100,001 1,057,85 1,157,85 250,000 1,029,089; 1,279,089
Interest Rate Swap-Sell 100,001 1,057,85 1,157,85 250,000 1,029,089; 1,279,089
Foreign Currency, Interest rate and Securities Options - 3,871,72: 3,871,728 11,613,515 13,093,525 24,707,040
Foreign Currency Options-Buy - 1,929,671 1,929,671 9,851,777 2,647,813 12,499,590
Foreign Currency Options-Sell - 1,942,057 1,942,057 1,761,738 10,445,712 12,207,450
Interest Rate Options-Buy - E g - - -
Interest Rate Options-Sell - E g - - -
Securities Options-Buy - E g - - -
Securities Options-Sell - E E - - -
Foreign Currency Futures 1,569,738 1,507,235 3,077,015 488,356 467,458 955,814
Foreign Currency Futures-Buy 1,172,958 385,641 1,558,598 488,356 - 488,356
Foreign Currency Futures-Sell 396,822; 1,121,595 1,518,417 - 467,458 467,458
Interest Rate Futures - E E - - -
Interest Rate Futures-Buy - - g - - -
Interest Rate Futures-Sell - - E - - -
Other - - E - - -
CUSTODY AND PLEDGES RECEIVED (IV+V+VI) 184,412,422; 711,768,233 896,180,655 169,615,321 448,534,685 618,150,006
ITEMS HELD IN CUSTODY 8,121,098; 11,783,258; 19,904,356| 13,610,861 8,544,173, 22,155,034
Customer Fund and Portfolio Balances - E E - - -
Investment Securities Held in Custody 1,434,788 11,636,109 13,070,897 8,957,723 8,189,953 17,147,676,
Cheques Received for Collection 4,349,032; 120,952 4,469,984 3,155,875 60,224 3,216,099
Commercial Notes Received for Collection 25,411 26,197 51,608 15,016 17,118 32,134
Other Assets Received for Collection - E E - - -
Assets Received for Public Offering - - g - - -
Other Items Under Custody 2,311,867 E 2,311,867 1,482,247 276,878 1,759,125
Custodians - - E - - -
PLEDGES RECEIVED 176,083,124: 699,984,975 876,068,099 155,784,284 439,990,512 595,774,796
Marketable Securities 893,581 E 893,581 1,365,501 - 1,365,501
Guarantee Notes 31,306,099 84,482,291 115,788,395 25,904,515 52,650,268 78,554,783
Commodity 8,566,884 2,633,834 11,200,718 2,757,975 1,912,416 4,670,391
Warranty - - - - - -
Immovable 115,838,967 373,779,54 489,618,507 110,957,551 227,890,780; 338,848,331
Other Pledged Items 19,477,593; 239,089,305, 258,566,898 14,798,742 157,537,048; 172,335,790
Pledged Items-Depository - - g - - -
ACCEPTED INDEPENDENT GUARANTEES AND WARRANTIES 208,200: - 208,200 220,176 - 220,176
TOTAL OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS (A+B) 225,521,486 788,745,436, 1,014,266,922| 198,879,534 515,767,278 714,646,812

The accompanying explanations and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN
TURKISH)

BURGAN BANK A.S.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIODS ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2023 AND 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

V. STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS Note (Section Audited Audited
INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS Five) 01/01/2023-31/12/2023|  01/01/2022-31/12/2022
1. INTEREST INCOME IV-a 13,245,888 6,768,857
1.1 Interest Received From Loans 5,648,194 4,215,862,
1.2 Interest Received From Reserve Deposits 325 11,002
1.3 Interest Received From Banks 592,786 84,474
1.4 Interest Received From Money Market Transactions 177,845 124,587
1.5 Interest Received From Marketable Securities Portfolio 2,562,745 754,852
1.5.1 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 32,596 15,250
1.5.2 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income 592,452 255,509
1.53 Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost 1,937,697, 484,093
1.6 Finance Lease Interest Income 799,401 396,244
1.7 Other Interest Income IV-k 3,464,592 1,181,836)
1I1. INTEREST EXPENSES (-) IV-b 11,101,540 4,889,567,
2.1 Interest on Deposits 6,055,208 2,732,999
2.2 Interest on Funds Borrowed 1,475,827, 585,544
2.3 Interest on Money Market Transactions 451,672 108,276
2.4 Interest on Securities Issued - 4,633
2.5 Finance Lease Interest Expenses 16,257 13,262
2.6 Other Interest Expenses v-1 3,102,576 1,444,853
111, NET INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSE (I - IT) 2,144,348 1,879,290
IV. NET FEES AND COMMISSIONS INCOME/EXPENSES 845,374 325,385
4.1 Fees and Commissions Received 978,177 388,697
4.1.1 Non-Cash Loans 132,919 48,691
4.1.2 Other V-1 845,258, 340,006
4.2 Fees and Commissions Paid (-) 132,803 63,312
4.2.1 Non-Cash Loans (-) 7,634 1,932
4.2.2 Other (-) V-1 125,169 61,380]
V. DIVIDEND INCOME IV-c 7,477 24,
VI. TRADING PROFIT/LOSS (Net) Iv-d 1,447,656 298,839
6.1 Profit/Losses From Capital Market Transactions 655,857 147,737
6.2 Profit/Losses From Derivative Financial Transactions (293,360), (84,929)
6.3 Foreign Exchange Profit/Losses 1,085,159 236,031
VIIL. OTHER OPERATING INCOME IV-e 1,375,087 562,364
VIII. GROSS PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (III+IV+V+VI) 5,819,942 3,065,902
IX. ALLOWANCES FOR EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (-) IV-f (1,321,820) (379,984)
X. OTHER PROVISION EXPENSES (-) Iv-f 798,016 501,285|
XI. PERSONNEL EXPENSES (-) 1,365,380 615,873
XII. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (-) IvV-g 1,223,468 560,022
XIII. NET OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS (VII-IX-X-XI-XII) 3,754,898 1,768,706
XIV. SURPLUS WRITTEN AS GAIN AFTER MERGER | |
XV. PROFIT/LOSS FROM EQUITY METHOD APPLIED SUBSIDIARIES | |
XVI. NET MONETARY POSITION GAIN/LOSS - -
XVII. PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAXES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
(XII+...+XVI) IV-h 3,754,808 1,768,706]
XVIIIL. PROVISION FOR TAXES ON INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS () IV-i (1,194,594) (566,982)
18.1 Current Tax Provision 307,206 765,612
18.2 Expense Effect of Deferred Tax (+) 964,781 295,378
18.3 Income Effect of deferred tax (-) 77,393 494,008
XIX. NET PROFIT/LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (XVII+XVIII) IV-j 2,560,304 1,201,724
XX. INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - -
20.1 Income From Assets Held For Sale - -
20.2 Profit From Sale of Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures R R
20.3 Other Income From Discontinued Operations - -
XXI. EXPENSES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (-) - -
21.1 Expenses on Assets Held For Sale R R
21.2 Losses From Sale of Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures R R
21.3 Other Expenses From Discontinued Operations R R
PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAXES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (XX-
XXII. XXI) - -
XXIII. TAX PROVISION FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (%) E R
23.1 Current Tax Provision R R
23.2 Expense Effect of Deferred Tax (+) R R
23.3 Income Effect of Deferred Tax (-) E E
XXIV. NET PROFIT/LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (XXII+XXIII) - -
XXV. NET PROFIT/LOSS (XIX+XXIV) IV-k 2,560,304 1,201,724
25.1 Group's Profit / Loss 2,560,304 1,201,724
25.2 Minority Shares’ Profit / Loss (-) E E
Profit / (Loss) per share (1.000 nominal in TL full) 9.571 5.135]

The accompanying explanations and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



(CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED

IN TURKISH)

BURGAN BANK A.S.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE PERIODS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 AND 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

Audited Audited
IV. STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 31/12/2023 31/12/2022
L CURRENT PERIOD PROFIT/LOSS 2,560,304 1,201,724
1I. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (264,577) 640,398,
2.1  Items that Will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss 32,420 (11,598),
2.1.1 Increases/Decreases in Revaluation of Tangible Assets 67,750 22,945
2.1.2 Increases/Decreases in Revaluation Differences of Intangible Assets - -
2.1.3 Defined Benefit Plans Re-Measurement Gains/Loss (23,720), (41,648)
2.1.4 Other Comprehensive Income not to be Reclassified as Other Profit or Loss - -
2.1.5 Other Comprehensive Income not to be Reclassified to Profit or Loss (11,604), 7,105
2.2 Items that will be Reclassified to Profit or Loss (296,997) 651,996
2.2.1 Foreign Currency Translation Differences - -
2.2.2 Income/Expenses on Valuation and/or Reclassification Arising from Financial Assets at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive Income (231,940), 151,474
2.2.3 Income/Expenses Arising on Cash Flow Hedges (117,149), 728,090
2.2.4 Income/Expenses Arising on Net Investment Hedges e e
2.2.5 Other Comprehensive Income to be Reclassified as Other Profit or Loss - -
2.2.6 Taxes Related to Other Comprehensive Income that will be Reclassified to Profit or Loss 52,092 (227,5638)
III. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (I+II) 2,295,727 1,842,122

The accompanying explanations and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH)

BURGAN BANK A.S.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

V. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income or Expenses not to be

Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income or Expenses to be Reclassified

Reclassified to Profit or Loss to Profit or Loss

Total

Shareholders’

. Current| Equity Except
Audited Note Share Other Prior Period| Period Net From Total
CURRENT PERIOD (Section Paid-in Share | Cancellation Capital Profit Profit/| Income or Minority| Minority| Shareholders’
31.12.2023 Five) Capital Premium Profit Reserves 1 2 3 4 5 6| Reserves (Loss) Loss Interest| Interest Equity
I Prior Period End Balance 1I-1 2,655,500 - - (6,321) 53,305 (40,681) - - 64,663 720,650 429,402 1,217,432 - 5,093,950 - 5,093,950
11 Corrections according to TAS 8 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
2.1 Effect of Corrections of Errors - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
2.2 Effect of Amendments in Accounting Policies - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
111 New Balance (I+II) 2,655,500 - - (6,321) 53,305 (40,681) - - 64,663 720,650 429,402 1,217,432 - 5,093,950 - 5,093,950
1v. Total Comprehensive Income - - - - 46,413 (13,993) - - (166,669) (130,328) - - 2,560,304 2,295,727 - 2,295,727
V. Capital Increase in Cash - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
VL Capital Increase in Internal Resources 394,500 - - - - - - - - -1 (394,500) - - - - -
VII.  Adjustment to Share Capital - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
VIII.  Convertible Bonds - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
IX. Subordinated Debt Instruments - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
X. Gain or Loss related to Other Changes - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
XI. Profit Distribution - - - - - - - - - -1 1,217,432§ (1,217,432) - - - -
11.1  Dividend Paid - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11.2 Transfers to Reserves - - - - - - - - - - 1,217,432¢ (1,217,432) - - - -
11.3  Other - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Period End Balance (III+IV+......+X+XI) 3,050,000 - - (6,321) 99,718 (54,674) - - (102,006) 590,322 1,252,334 - 2,560,304 7,389,677 - 7,389,677

1. Tangible assets revaluations increases / decreases,

2. Accumulated re-measurement gains / (losses) of defined benefit plans,
3. Other (the share of other comprehensive income of the investments accounted by the equity method that cannot be classified as profit / (loss) and the accumulated amount of other comprehensive income items that will not be reclassified as other profit / (loss)),
4. Foreign currency translation differences,

5. Accumulated revaluation and / or classification gains / (losses) on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income,

6. Other (Cash flow hedging gains / (losses), share of other comprehensive income of equity method investees classified as profit / (loss) and accumulated other comprehensive income to be reclassified as other profit or (loss)).

The accompanying explanations and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH)

BURGAN BANK A.S.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

Accumulated Other

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Comprehensive Income or

V. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY Reclssfed to Profiar Loss | o Proitor Los

. Shareholﬁggl

Audited Note Share Other Plc)rril:; Pchi:)l;r;t: Equity Eéf-co]:x: Total
PRIOR PERIOD (Section Paid-in Share | Cancellation Capital Profit Profit/ | Income or Minority Minority Shareholders’
31.12.2022 Five) Capital Premium Profit Reserves 1 2 3 4 5 6 Reserves (Loss) Loss Interest Interest Equity
L Prior Period End Balance 1I-1 1,890,000 - - (2,532) 34,176 (9,954) - - i (52,206) 185,523 124,587 304,815 - 2,474,409 - 2,474,409
1L Corrections according to TAS 8 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
2.1 Effect of Corrections of Errors - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
22 Effect of Amendments in Accounting Policies - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
111 New Balance (I+1I) 1,890,000 - - (2,532) 34,176 (9,954) - - i (52,206) 185,523 124,587 304,815 - 2,474,409 - 2,474,409
Iv. Total Comprehensive Income - - - - 19,129 (30,727) - - i 116,869 535,127 - - 1,201,724 1,842,122 - 1,842,122
V. Capital Increase in Cash 765,500 - - - - - - - - - - - - 765,500 - 765,500
VI Capital Increase in Internal Resources - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
VII.  Adjustment to Share Capital - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
VIII.  Convertible Bonds - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
IX. Subordinated Debt Instruments - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
X. Gain or Loss related to Other Changes - - - (3,789) - - - - - - - 15,708 - 11,919 - 11,919
XL Profit Distribution - - - - - - - - - - 304,815 (304,815) - - - -
11.1  Dividend Paid - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
11.2  Transfers to Reserves - - - - - - - - - - 304,815 (304,815) - - - -
11.3  Other - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Period End Balance (III+IV+.....+X+XI) 2,655,500 - - (6,321) 53,305 (40,681) - - 64,663 720,650 429,402 15,708 1,201,724 5,093,950 - 5,093,950

1. Tangible assets revaluations increases / decreases,

2. Accumulated re-measurement gains / (losses) of defined benefit plans,
3. Other (the share of other comprehensive income of the investments accounted by the equity method that cannot be classified as profit / (loss) and the accumulated amount of other comprehensive income items that will not be reclassified as other profit / (loss)),
4. Foreign currency translation differences,
5. Accumulated revaluation and / or classification gains / (losses) on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income,
6. Other (Cash flow hedging gains / (losses), share of other comprehensive income of equity method investees classified as profit / (loss) and accumulated other comprehensive income to be reclassified as other profit or (loss)).

The accompanying explanations and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED
IN TURKISH)

BURGAN BANK A.S.

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023 AND 31 DECEMBER 2022

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

Audited Audited|
VI. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 31/12/2023 31/12/2022
A. CASH FLOWS FROM BANKING OPERATIONS
1.1 Operating Profit Before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities 683,804 2,376,029
1.1.1 Interest Received 11,982,252 6,279,291
1.1.2  Interest Paid (10,488,171) (4,494,271)
1.1.3 Dividend Received 7,477 24
1.1.4 Fees and Commissions Received 840,168 294,010
1.1.5 Other Income - g
1.1.6 Collections from Previously Written-off Loans and Other Receivables 1,263,984 603,586
1.1.7 Payments to Personnel and Service Suppliers (1,365,380) (615,873)|
1.1.8 Taxes Paid (129,212) (43,408)|
1.1.9 Other VI-b (1,427,314) 352,670
1.2 Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities 6,677,354 4,826,954
1.2.1 Net (Increase)/Decrease in Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (221,402) (456,151)|
1.2.2  Net (Increase)/Decrease in Due from Banks and Other Financial Institutions 45,989 (159,051)|
1.2.3 Net (Increase)/Decrease in Loans (10,544,339) (10,969,075)
1.2.4 Net (Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (3,424,026) (2,284,347)
1.2.5 Net Increase/(Decrease) in Bank Deposits (472,632) (321,070)|
1.2.6  Net Increase/(Decrease) in Other Deposits 989,875 15,671,200
1.2.7 Net Increase/(Decrease) in Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - (311,356)|
1.2.8 Net Increase/(Decrease) in Funds Borrowed 15,084,167 (471,029)|
1.2.9 Net Increase/(Decrease) in Payables - E
1.2.10 Net Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities VI-b 5,219,722 4,127,833
1. Net Cash Provided from Banking Operations 7,361,158 7,202,983|
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
11. Net Cash Provided from Investing Activities (4,637,869) (4,762,872)
2.1 Cash Paid for Acquisition of Investments, Associates and Subsidiaries - e
2.2 Cash Obtained from Disposal of Investments, Associates and Subsidiaries - E
2.3 Purchases of Property and Equipment (2,342,870) (1,006,918)
2.4 Disposals of Property and Equipment 597,598 685,720
2.5 Cash Paid for Purchase of Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (1,710,337) (2,086,080)
2.6 Cash Obtained from Sale of Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income 604,058 1,316,055
2.7 Purchased Financial Assets at Amortized Cost (2,178,641) (3,975,531)
2.8 Sold Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 502,604 303,882
2.9  Other (110,281) g
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
III.  Net Cash Provided from Financing Activities (71,807) 725,465
3.1 Cash Obtained from Funds Borrowed and Securities Issued - E
32 Cash Used for Repayment of Funds Borrowed and Securities Issued - E
33 Issued Capital Instruments - 765,500
3.4 Dividends Paid - g
35 Payments for Leases (71,807) (40,035)|
3.6 Other - E
IV.  Effect of Change in Foreign Exchange Rate on Cash and Cash Equivalents VI-b 339,376 186,403
V. Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (I+1I+I11+1V) 2,990,858 3,351,979,
VI. Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Period VI-a 6,762,609 3,410,630
VII. Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of the Period VI-a 9,753,467 6,762,609

The accompanying explanations and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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(CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN
TURKISH)

BURGAN BANK A.S.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT DISTRIBUTION FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

VII. STATEMENT OF PROFIT APPROPRIATION (31/12/2023)(*) (31/12/2022) (**)

I. DISTRIBUTION OF CURRENT YEAR INCOME

1.1. CURRENT YEAR INCOME 3,237,390 1,651,186
1.2. TAXES AND DUTIES PAYABLE (-) 677,086 449,462
1.2.1. Corporate Tax (Income tax) 15,447 756,083
1.2.2. Income Withholding Tax - -
1.2.3. Other Tax and Legal Liabilities (***) 661,639 (306,621)
A.NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR (1.1-1.2) (*¥**¥) 2,560,304 1,201,724

1.3. PRIOR YEAR LOSSES (-) - -
1.4. FIRST LEGAL RESERVES (-) - -
1.5. OTHER STATUTORY RESERVES (-) - -

B. NET INCOME AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION [(A-(1.3+1.4+1.5)] - 1,201,724

1.6. FIRST DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (-) - -
1.6.1. To Owners of Ordinary Shares - -
1.6.2. To Owners of Privileged Shares - -
1.6.3. To Owners of Preferred Shares - -
1.6.4. To Profit Sharing Bonds - -
1.6.5. To Holders of Profit and Loss Sharing Certificates - -
1.7. DIVIDENDS TO PERSONNEL (-) - -
1.8.  DIVIDENDS TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (-) - -
1.9. SECOND DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (-) - -
1.9.1. To Owners of Ordinary Shares - -
1.9.2. To Owners of Privileged Shares - -
1.9.3. To Owners of Preferred Shares - -
1.9.4. To Profit Sharing Bonds - -
1.9.5. To Holders of Profit and Loss Sharing Certificates - -
1.10. SECOND LEGAL RESERVES (-) - -
1.11. STATUTORY RESERVES (-) - -
1.12. EXTRAORDINARY RESERVES - 1,201,724
1.13. OTHER RESERVES - -
1.14. SPECIAL FUNDS - -

II. DISTRIBUTION OF RESERVES

2.1. APPROPRIATED RESERVES - -
2.2. SECOND LEGAL RESERVES (-) - -
2.3. DIVIDENDS TO SHAREHOLDERS (-) - -
2.3.1. To Owners of Ordinary Shares - -
2.3.2. To Owners of Privileged Shares - -
2.3.3. To Owners of Preferred Shares - -
2.3.4. To Profit Sharing Bonds - -
2.3.5. To Holders of Profit and Loss Sharing Certificates - -
2.4. DIVIDENDS TO PERSONNEL (-) - -
2.5. DIVIDENDS TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (-) - -

III. EARNINGS PER SHARE

3.1. TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES - -
3.2.  TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES ( % ) - -
3.3. TO OWNERS OF PRIVILEGED SHARES - -
3.4. TO OWNERS OF PRIVILEGED SHARES ( % ) - -

IV. DIVIDEND PER SHARE

4.1 TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES - -
4.2. TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES (%) - -
4.3. TO OWNERS OF PRIVILEGED SHARES - -
4.4. TO OWNERS OF PRIVILEGED SHARES (% ) - -

(*) As of the preparation date of the financial statements, the General Assembly meeting of the Bank has not been held yet.

(**) It contains the information on the “Dividend Distribution Statement” approved at the Bank's Ordinary General Assembly held on 31 March 2023.
(***) It has been considered by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency that the income amounts related to deferred tax assets cannot be qualified
as cash or internal resources, and therefore, the part of the period profit arising from the said assets should not be subject to profit distribution and capital
increase. The deferred tax expense that will not be subject to distribution as of 31 December 2023 is TL 661,639 (31 December 2022: Deferred tax income
TL 306,621).

(****) TL 965,707 in net profit for the period consists of TAS 27 adjustments (31 December 2022: TL 314,504).
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(CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN

TURKISH)

BURGAN BANK A §.

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

SECTION THREE

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE RELEVANT PERIOD

I

BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements and related notes and explanations in
accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards and Regulation on the Principles and Procedures
numbered 5411 Regarding Banks’ Accounting Application and Keeping Documents:

The consolidated financial statements are prepared within the scope of the “Regulation on Accounting
Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents” related with Banking Act numbered 5411 published
in the Official Gazette n0.26333 dated 1 November 2006 and in accordance with the regulations,
communiqués, interpretations and legislations related to accounting and financial reporting principles
published by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA”), and in case where a specific
regulation is not made by BRSA, “Turkish Accounting Standards” (“TAS”) and “Turkish Financial
Reporting Standards” (“TFRS”) and related appendices and interpretations (all “Turkish Accounting
Standards” or “TAS”) put into effect by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority
(“POA”). The format and content of the publicly announced unconsolidated financial statements and related
disclosures to these statements have been prepared in accordance with the “Communiqué related to Publicly
Announced Financial Statements of Banks and Explanations and Notes to related to these Financial
Statements”, published in the Official Gazette No. 28337, dated 28 June 2012, and changes and amendments
to this Communiqué. The Parent Bank maintains its accounting entries in Turkish Lira, in accordance with
the Banking Law, Turkish Trade Law and the Turkish Tax Legislation.

The consolidated financial statements expressed in TL, were prepared with the cost-based method and were
subject to inflation adjustments until 31 December 2004, except for financial assets, liabilities and buildings
which were carried at fair value. The amounts in the consolidated financial statements and notes related to
these financial statements have been expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira, unless otherwise stated. The
preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with TAS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates by the Parent Bank management to exercise its judgment on the assets and liabilities of
the balance sheet and contingent issues as of the balance sheet date. These estimates, which include the fair
value calculations of financial instruments and impairments of financial assets are being reviewed regularly
and, when necessary, suitable corrections are made and the effects of these corrections are reflected to the
income statement. Assumptions and estimates that are used in the preparation of the accompanying financial
statements are explained in the following related disclosures.

In accordance with the CMB's decision dated 17 March 2005 and numbered 11/367, for companies operating
in Turkey and preparing financial statements in accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards, the
application of inflation accounting has been terminated as of 1 January 2005. Accordingly, as of 1 January
2005, the standard No. 29 “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies” (“TAS 29”) has not been
applied.

According to TAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies, entities whose functional
currency is the currency of a hyperinflationary economy report their financial statements in terms of the
currency's purchasing power at the end of the reporting period. TAS 29 defines characteristics that may
indicate an economy is hyperinflationary. Moreover, under TAS 29, all entities reporting in the currency of
a hyperinflationary economy are required to apply this Standard from the same date. Therefore, it is expected
that all entities will start applying TAS 29 simultaneously with the announcement to be made by the Public
Oversight, Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority to ensure consistency in application nationwide, as
stated in TAS 29.
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(CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN

TURKISH)

BURGAN BANK A §.

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE RELEVANT PERIOD (Continued):

I

II.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued):

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements and related notes and explanations in
accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards and Regulation on the Principles and Procedures
Regarding Banks’ Accounting Application and Keeping Documents (continued):

With its announcement dated 23 November 2023, KGK stated that the financial statements of businesses
applying Turkish Financial Reporting Standards for the annual reporting period ending on or after 31
December 2023 should be prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard in High Inflation
Economies (“TMS 29”). He explained that institutions or organizations authorized to regulate and supervise
their own fields may determine different transition dates for the implementation of TMS 29 provisions. Based
on this announcement of the KGK, BRSA, with its decision numbered 10744 dated 12 December 2023,
decided that the financial statements of banks and financial leasing, factoring, financing, savings financing
and asset management companies dated 31 December 2023 will not be subject to the inflation adjustment
required within the scope of TMS 29. In accordance with the BRSA's decision dated January 11, 2024 and
numbered 10825; It has been decided that banks, financial leasing, factoring, financing, savings financing
and asset management companies will switch to inflation accounting as of January 1, 2025. Based on this,
the Group did not apply the inflation accounting required within the scope of TMS 29 in its consolidated
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2023.

Explanations on accounting policies and changes in financial statement presentations:

None.

Items subject to different accounting policies in the preparation of consolidated financial statements:
None.

EXPLANATIONS ON STRATEGY OF USING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FOREIGN
CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS:

The general strategy of the Group is using financial instruments to sustain an optimal balance between the
yield of the instruments and their risks. The most important funding source of the Group is deposits.
Additionally, the Group can also sustain a lengthened liability structure by using long-term borrowings from
foreign financial institutions. Funds obtained from deposits and other sources are invested in high yield and
quality financial assets and currency, interest rate and liquidity risks are being kept within the limits following
the asset-liability management strategy. The currency, interest and liquidity risks of on-balance sheet and
off-balance sheet assets and liabilities are managed accordingly within the risk limits accepted by the Group
and the related legal limits. Derivative instruments are mainly utilized for liquidity needs and for mitigating
currency and interest rate risks. The position of the Group as a result of foreign currency activities are being
held at minimum levels and the exposed currency risk is followed within the levels determined by the Board
of Directors, considering the limits given by the Banking Law.

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated with the Parent Bank’s foreign
currency bid rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising from such valuations are
recognized in the income statement under the account of “Foreign exchange gains or losses”.

As of 31 December 2023, foreign currency denominated balances are translated into TL using the exchange
rates of TL 29.4382 and TL 32.5739 for USD and EUR, respectively.
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(CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN
TURKISH)

BURGAN BANK A §.

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE RELEVANT PERIOD (Continued):

I1I.

EXPLANATIONS ON INVESTMENTS IN CONSOLIDATED ASSOCIATES, SUBSIDIARIES AND
JOINT VENTURES:

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the TFRS 10 “Turkish Accounting
Standard for Consolidated Financial Statements”. Consolidation principles for subsidiaries:

Subsidiaries are entities controlled directly or indirectly by the Parent Bank. Subsidiaries are consolidated
using the full consolidation method on the grounds of materiality principle considering their operations, asset
and equity sizes. Financial statements of related subsidiaries are consolidated from the date when the control
is transferred to the Parent Bank.

Control depicts the significant influence the Parent Bank has over an investment to a legal entity, the varying
yield the Parent Bank receives due to its relationship with this entity or the rights of the Parent Bank entitled
over this yield and the power to impact the yield that the invested legal entity will generate.

In the full consolidation method, 100% of subsidiaries’ assets, liabilities, income, expense and off-balance
sheet items are combined with the Parent Bank’s assets, liabilities, income, expense and off-balance sheet
items.

The carrying amount of the Group’s investment in each subsidiary and the Group’s portion of the cost value
of the capital of each subsidiary are eliminated. Intergroup balances and intergroup transactions and resulting
unrealized profits and losses are eliminated. Minority interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet,

under shareholder’s equity. Minority interests are presented separately in the Group’s income.

The Group has no joint ventures as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.
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(CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN

TURKISH)

BURGAN BANK A §.

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE RELEVANT PERIOD (Continued):

Iv.

VI

EXPLANATIONS ON FORWARD TRANSACTIONS, OPTIONS AND DERIVATIVE
INSTRUMENTS:

The major derivative instruments utilized by the Group are currency and interest rate swaps, cross currency
swaps, currency options and currency forwards.

The Group classifies its currency forwards, swaps, options and futures as transactions at “Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss” in accordance with TFRS 9 principles. Derivative transactions are recorded in accordance
with their fair value on the contract date. Also, liabilities and receivables arising from derivative instruments
are followed in the off-balance sheet accounts from their contractual values.

Derivative instruments are measured at their fair values in the periods following their recording and are
disclosed under assets or liabilities in the “Derivative Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss”
section according to whether their fair value is positive or negative. Valuation differences in the fair value of
trading derivative instruments are reflected to the income statement. The fair values of the derivative financial
instruments are calculated by using quoted market prices or by using discounted cash flow models.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group applies cash flow hedge accounting through cross and interest currency
swaps to protect against changes in interest rates of FC deposits which have average maturities of up to 3
months. The Group implements effectiveness tests at the balance sheet dates for hedge accounting, the
effective parts are accounted as defined in TAS 39, on the financial statements under equity “Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income or Expense to be Reclassified Through Profit or Loss”, whereas the amount
concerning ineffective parts is associated with the income statement.

In cash flow hedge accounting, when the hedging instrument expires, is executed or sold and when the hedge
relationship becomes ineffective or is discontinued as a result of the hedge relationship being revoked; the
hedging gains and losses that were previously recognized under equity are transferred to profit or loss when
the cash flows of the hedged item are realized. The renewal of a financial hedging instrument or the transfer
of a financial hedging instrument to another financial hedging instrument does not eliminate the hedging
relationship, if the financial hedging instrument is part of the hedging strategy in accordance with TFRS 9.

EXPLANATIONS ON INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE:
Interest income and expenses are recognized in the income statement by using the effective interest method.
EXPLANATIONS ON FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE:

Fees and commission income/expenses are primarily recognized on an accrual basis or “Effective Interest
(Internal Efficiency) Method” according to the nature of the fee and commission, except for certain
commission income and fees for various banking services which are recorded as income at the time of
collection. Contract based fees or fees received for services such as the purchase and sale of assets on behalf
of a third party or legal person are recognized as income at the time of collection. The commissions and fees
other than those whose amortised costs are an integral part of their effective profit rate, are accounted over
time in accordance with the TFRS 15 Revenue From Contracts With Customers Standard.
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(CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF PUBLICLY ANNOUNCED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN
TURKISH)

BURGAN BANK A §.

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2023

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE RELEVANT PERIOD (Continued):

VIIL. EXPLANATIONS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS:

The Group classifies and accounts its financial assets as “Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss”, “Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income” or “Financial Assets
Measured at Amortized Cost”. Such financial assets are recognized or derecognized according to TFRS 9
Financial Instruments Part three “Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments” published in the
Official Gazette No. 29953 dated 19 January 2017 by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing
Standards Authority. Financial assets are measured at fair value at initial recognition in the financial
statements. During the initial recognition of financial assets other than “Financial Assets at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss”, transaction costs are added to fair value or deducted from fair value.

The Group recognizes a financial asset into the financial statements when it becomes a party to the contractual
terms of a financial instrument. During the first recognition of a financial asset into the financial statements,
the business model determined by the Bank management and the nature of contractual cash flows of the
financial asset are taken into consideration. When the business model determined by the Bank’s management
is changed, all affected financial assets are reclassified and this reclassification is applied prospectively. In
such cases, no adjustments are made to earnings, losses or interests that were previously recorded in the
financial statements.

a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

“Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss” are financial assets other than the ones that are
managed with business models that aim to hold contractual cash flows in order to collect them and the ones
that are managed with business models that aim to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows
arising from the sale of the assets; If the contractual terms of the financial asset do not lead to cash flows
representing solely payments of principal and interest at a certain date; That are either acquired for generating
a profit from short-term fluctuations in prices or are financial assets included in a portfolio aiming to short-
term profit making. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value
and remeasured at their fair value after recognition. The gains and losses arising from the conducted
valuations are included in profit/loss accounts.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE RELEVANT PERIOD (Continued):

VIL

EXPLANATIONS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued):
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:

In addition to financial assets within a business model that aims to hold to collect contractual cash flows and
aims to hold to sell, financial assets with contractual terms that lead to cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest at certain dates, are classified as fair value through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized by adding transaction cost
to acquisition cost reflecting the fair value of the financial asset. After the recognition, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income are re-measured at fair value. Interest income calculated with the
effective interest rate method arising from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
and dividend income from equity securities are recorded to income statement. Unrealized gains and losses,
arising from the difference between the amortized cost and the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not reflected in the income statement of the period until the
acquisition of the asset, sale of the asset, the disposal of the asset, and impairment of the asset and they are
accounted under “Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income or Expense to be Reclassified Through Profit
or Loss” under shareholders’ equity. When the mentioned marketable securities are collected or sold, the
accumulated losses through fair value are reflected on the income statement.

Equity securities, which are classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income,
that have a quoted market price in an active market and/or whose fair values can be reliably measured are
carried at their fair value. Equity securities that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and/or
whose fair values cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost, less provision for impairment. In case of
disposal of the equity investment, the accumulated total gain or loss is followed in the “Other Accumulated
Comprehensive Income or Expense that cannot be reclassified to Profit or Loss”.

During initial recognition, an entity can make an irrevocable decision, by choosing to record the changes of
the fair value of the investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading purposes in other
comprehensive income. If this choice is made, the dividends from the investment are taken into the financial
statements as profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash fows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost. Financial
assets measured at amortized cost are initially recognized at their acquisition cost including the transaction
costs which reflect the fair value of those instruments and are subsequently recognized at “Amortized Cost”
by using “Effective Interest (Internal Efficiency) Rate” method. Interest income obtained from financial
assets measured at amortized cost are accounted in the income statement.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE RELEVANT PERIOD (Continued):

VIIL. EXPLANATIONS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued):
¢. Financial assets measured at amortized cost (Continued):

Also, within the Bank’s securities portfolio, inflation-indexed government bonds are classified as financial
assets reflected in fair value changes recognized in other comprehensive income, and financial assets
measured at amortized cost. These securities are valued and accounted for using the effective interest method
based on the index calculated considering real coupon rates and the inflation index at the issuance date, along
with the estimated inflation rate. As specified in the Treasury’s Guide for Investors in Inflation-Indexed
Bonds, the actual coupon payment amounts for these instruments are determined based on the inflation
indices derived from the Consumer Price Index (CPI) two months prior. The Bank also adjusts its estimated
inflation rate accordingly, in line with the expectations of the Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey and
the Bank, and updates it as deemed necessary throughout the year.

d. Loans:

Loans are financial assets that have fixed or determinable payment terms and are not quoted in an active
market. Loans are initially recognized at acquisition cost plus transaction costs presenting their fair value and
thereafter measured at amortized cost using the “Effective Interest Rate (Internal Rate of Return)” method.

The Group’s loans are recorded under the “Measured at Amortized Cost” account.

Write-off policy is explained in, section V, L.e.12, the explanations and notes related to Loans.
VIIIL. EXPLANATIONS ON EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES:

The Group allocates impairment for expected loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost and
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

As of 1 January 2018, in accordance with the Communiqué related to “Procedures and Principals regarding
Classification of Loans and Allowances Allocated for Such Loans” published in the Official Gazette no.
29750 dated 22 June 2016, the Bank has started to allocate a loss allowance for expected credit losses on
financial assets and loans measured at amortized cost in accordance with TFRS 9. In this context, as of 1
January 2018, the credit loss allowance method within the framework of the BRSA’s related legislation has
been changed to the loss allowance for expected credit losses model with the implementation of TFRS 9.
The predictions of expected credit loss forecasts include credible information, which is objective, probability-
weighted, supportable about past events, current conditions, and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE RELEVANT PERIOD (Continued):

VIIIL.

EXPLANATIONS ON EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (Continued):
The basic parameters used in the calculations of provision are described below:

Probability of Default (PD): PD refers to the likelihood that a loan will default within a specified time
horizon. Based on TFRS 9, two different PDs are considered in calculations:

- 12-month PD: The probability of default occurring within the next 12 months following the balance
sheet date.

- Lifetime PD: The probability of default occurring over the remaining life of the loan.

The Group generates ratings for the corporate and commercial customers via internal rating system and the
12-month or lifetime probability of defaults are estimated based on these ratings. Macroeconomic
expectations are taken into account when carrying out these expectations and the weighted average of the
probabilities of default calculated from three different scenarios are considered as the final probability of
default.

For retail customers, the score point is generated via the internal scoring system and the 12-month or lifetime
probabilities of default are estimated based on these score points by considering the above-mentioned
macroeconomic factors.

For the receivables from customers such as sovereign and banks, provision is calculated by using the
determined values in the corporate and commercial probability of default table and the loss given default
rates.

Loss Given Default Rate: If a loan default occurs, it refers to the economic loss that might be encountered
by taking into consideration the collection period and the time value of money. The Group has determined
the loss given default rates by considering the expert opinion based on the past historical data set.

Exposure at Default: For cash loans, it corresponds to the amount of loan granted as of the reporting date.
For non-cash loans, it is the value calculated through using credit conversion factors.

The bank incorporates forward-looking macroeconomic data into its calculation of expected credit losses to
assess default probabilities. In this context, estimates of default rates for future periods are based on Turkey's
annual real Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth rate. Predictions regarding macroeconomic variables are
determined based on three different scenarios: negative, baseline, and positive, to be used in calculating
expected credit losses. Final values are obtained by averaging the expected credit losses generated in the
respective scenarios.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE RELEVANT PERIOD (Continued):

VIIIL.

EXPLANATIONS ON EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (Continued):

These financial assets are divided into three categories depending on the gradual increase in credit risk
observed since their initial recognition:

Stage 1:

These are the financial assets at initial recognition or financial assets that do not have a significant increase
in credit risk since their initial recognition. Impairment for credit risk for these assets is accounted in the
amount of 12-month expected credit losses. Therefore, the expected probability of default of 12 months is
calculated by considering the maturity of the loan. This value is obtained after weighting the three macro-
economic scenarios and the provision is calculated using the loss given default and risk amounts calculated
by taking into consideration the collateral composition of the loan.

Stage 2:

As of the reporting date of the financial asset, in the event of a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the financial asset is transferred to Stage 2. Impairment for credit risk is accounted based on the
financial asset’s lifetime expected credit losses. The provision which will be allocated for the loan is
calculated by considering the maturity and cash flow of the loan for three macroeconomic scenarios as stated
above. For this purpose, the probability of default and the loss given default amounts are estimated not only
for 12 months but also for the whole life of the loan and the loan provision is determined by using the present
value set calculated over the cash flow.

Stage 3:

Stage 3 includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. For these
assets, lifetime expected credit losses are recognized. The method is similar to the methodology applied for
Stage 2 loans, but the probability of default is considered 100% in these calculations. In general the Group
follows the definition of default in the legislation (objective default definition, for example the criterion of
the number of days past due). On the other hand, if it is decided that the debt will not be paid, the
aforementioned receivable will be considered as Stage 3, even if the default has not occurred yet.

The Group carries out its determination regarding the significant increase in credit risk by taking into
consideration of the following criterias:

- Type of customer (calculations are made on separate models for corporate and commercial customers
and retail customers).

- Internal rating scores (calculations are based on score points for retail customers and ratings for corporate
and commercial customers).

- The deterioration observed in the internal rating score between the drawdown date and the reporting date.

In addition to the rules above, the Group has also set aside additional provisions through individual
assessment.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE RELEVANT PERIOD (Continued):

IX.

XI.

EXPLANATIONS ON OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS:

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when the Group
has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to collect/pay related
financial assets and liabilities on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

EXPLANATIONS ON SALES AND REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS AND SECURITIES
LENDING TRANSACTIONS:

Securities subject to repurchase agreements (“Repo”) are classified as “Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss”, “Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income” and “Financial assets
measured at amortized cost” according to the investment purposes of the Group and are measured according
to the portfolio to which they belong. Funds obtained from repurchase agreements are accounted under
“Funds Provided under Repurchase Agreements” in liabilities and the difference between the sale and
repurchase price is accrued over the life of repurchase agreements using the effective interest method.

Funds given against securities purchased under agreements (“Reverse repo”) to resell are accounted under
“Receivables from Reverse Repurchase Agreements” on the balance sheet. The difference between the
purchase and determined resell price is accrued over the life of repurchase agreements using the “effective
interest method”. The Group has no securities lending transactions.

EXPLANATIONS ON TANGIBLE ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE, DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS AND LIABILITIES REGARDING THOSE ASSETS:

Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of the assets’ carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Held for sale assets are not amortized and presented separately in the financial statements. In order to classify
an asset as held for sale, only when the sale is highly probable, experienced quite often and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale. Highly saleable condition
requires a plan by the management regarding the sale of the asset to be disposed (or else the group of assets),
together with an active program for determination of buyers as well as for the completion of the plan. Also
the asset (or else the group of assets) shall be actively marketed in conformity with its fair value. On the other
hand, the sale is expected to be journalized as a completed sale within one year after the classification date;
and the necessary transactions and procedures to complete the plan should demonstrate the fact that the
possibility of making significant changes or cancelling the plan is low. Various circumstances and conditions
could extend the completion period of the sale more than one year. If such delay arises from any events and
conditions beyond the control of the entity and if there is sufficient evidence that the entity has an ongoing
disposal plan for these assets, such assets (or else group of assets) are continued to be classified as assets
held for sale.

The Group has no discontinued operations.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE RELEVANT PERIOD (Continued):

XII.

a.

XIII.

EXPLANATIONS ON GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS:
Goodwill:

As of 31 December 2023, the Group has no goodwill (31 December 2022: None).
Other intangible assets:

Intangible assets are measured at cost on initial recognition and any directly attributable costs of setting the
asset to work for its intended use are included in the initial measurement. Subsequently, intangible assets are
carried at historical costs after the deduction of accumulated amortization and the provision for value
decreases, if any.

Intangibles are amortized over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line amortization method. The
useful life of the asset is determined by assessing the expected useful life of the asset, technical, technological
and other kinds of obsolescence and all required maintenance expenses necessary to utilize the economic
benefit of the asset and differs from 3 years to 15 years.

EXPLANATIONS ON PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Tangible assets is measured at its cost when initially recognised and any directly attributable costs of setting
the asset in working order for its intended use are included in the initial measurement. Subsequently, tangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for value decrease, if any.

The Group has adopted the “revaluation method” in accordance with the “Communiqué Regarding the
Principles and Procedures for the Tangible Assets (“TAS 16”)” for its buildings. Independent expert appraisal
values determined by independent experts are presented in the financial statements.

Depreciation is calculated over the cost of property and equipment using the straight-line method. The
depreciation rates are stated below:

Buildings 2%
Movables, Movables Acquired by Financial Leasing 2-50%

As of the balance sheet date, the depreciation charge for items remaining in property and equipment for less
than an accounting period is calculated in proportion to the time period the item remained in property and
equipment.

When the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated “Recoverable amount”, it is written down
to its “Recoverable amount” and the provision for the diminution value is charged to the income statement.

Gains and losses on the disposal of property and equipment are determined by deducting the net book value
of the property and equipment from its sales revenue.

Expenditures for the repair and renewal of property and equipment are recognized as expense. The capital
expenditures made in order to increase the capacity of the tangible asset or to increase its future benefits are
capitalized on the cost of the tangible asset. The capital expenditures include the cost components which are
used either to increase the useful life or the capacity of the asset, or the quality of the product or to decrease
the costs.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE RELEVANT PERIOD (Continued):

XIV.

EXPLANATIONS ON LEASING TRANSACTIONS:

The Group records its fixed assets obtained via leasing by taking into consideration the “lower of the fair value
of the leased asset and the present value of the amount of cash consideration given for the leased asset”.

Leased assets are included in the property and equipment and these assets are depreciated by taking their useful
lives into consideration. If impairment is detected in the value of the leased asset, a “Provision for impairment”
is recognized. Liabilities arising from leasing transactions are included in “Financial Lease Payables” on the
balance sheet. Interest and foreign exchange expenses regarding lease transactions are charged to the income
statement. The Group realizes financial leasing transactions as a “Lessor” by means of Burgan Finansal
Kiralama A.S. which is the consolidated subsidiary of the Group.

With the “TFRS 16 Leases” standard, which became effective as of 1 January 2019, the difference between
operating lease and financial lease has been removed, and lease transactions have started to be recognized
under “Tangible Fixed Assets” as an asset (right to use asset) and under “Lease Payables” as a liability.

The Group has applied the changes in accounting policies due to the initial implementation of the “TFRS 16
Leases” standard, which is among the new standards, amendments and interpretations effective from 1 January
2019, in accordance with the transition obligations of the related standard.

TFRS 16 "Leases" Standard

The Group — lessee:

At the beginning of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract has the quality of a lease or whether
the contract includes a lease transaction. In circumstances when the contract transfers the right of controlling
the asset for a certain time period for a certain price, this contract carries the quality of a lease or includes a
leasing transaction. Group, reflects the existence of a right of use and a lease liability to the financial statements
at the effective date of the lease.

Existence of right to use:

The right to use asset is first recognized by the cost method and includes the following:

a) The initial measurement amount of the lease obligation,

b) The amount obtained by deducting all the rental incentives received from all lease payments made at or
before the beginning of the lease,

c¢) All initial direct costs incurred by the Bank

When the Group applies the cost method, the existence of the right to use:

a) accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses are deducted and
b) measures the restatement of the lease obligation at the restated cost.
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EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE RELEVANT PERIOD (Continued):

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

EXPLANATIONS ON LEASING TRANSACTIONS (Continued):

The Group applies the depreciation statutes included in the TAS 16 Tangible Assets standard while
depreciating the right to use an asset.

Lease obligation:

At the effective date of the lease, the Group measures its leasing liability at the present value of the lease
payments not paid at that time. Lease payments are discounted using the Group's average borrowing interest
rates in the case of this rate being easily determined. Otherwise, the Group uses its alternative borrowing
interest rates.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability consist of the payments to be made for
the right of use during the lease term of the underlying asset and the unpaid payments at the effective date of
the lease:

After the effective date of the lease, the Group measures the leasing liability as follows:

a) Increases the book value to reflect the interest on the lease obligation,

b) Reduces the book value to reflect the lease payments made and

c) The book value is measured to reflect reassessments and restructuring, or to reflect fixed lease payments as
of revised nature.

The interest on the lease liability for each period in the lease period is the amount calculated by applying a
fixed periodic interest rate to the remaining balance of the lease liability.

EXPLANATIONS ON PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT COMMITMENTS:

Provisions and contingent liabilities except for the specific and general provisions recognized for loans and
other receivables are accounted in accordance with the “Turkish Accounting Standard for Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” (“TAS 377).

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. The provision for contingent
liabilities arising from past events should be recognized in the same period of occurrence in accordance with
the “Matching principle”. When the amount of the obligation cannot be estimated and there is no possibility
of an outflow of resources from the Group, it is considered that a “Contingent” liability exists and it is disclosed
in the related notes to the financial statements.

EXPLANATIONS ON CONTINGENT ASSETS:

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of
an inflow of economic benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized in financial statements since
this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realized. Contingent assets are disclosed where
an i